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	TRANSPORT STRATEGY
PUBLIC REALM & PLANNING  


	To:
	Shane O’Donnell

	From:
	Marina Rochette (Transport Planning) 

	Date:
	04 December 2015

	Re:
	106 Malden Road 

London  

NW5 4DA

	Proposal:
	Erection of a part single storey, part two storey rear extension. Excavation of a front light well and conversion of the basement to create an additional two bedroom flat. 

	Reference:
	2015/4985/P


I have reviewed the plans and documents submitted with the planning application 2015/4985/P.
Car Parking
Development policy DP18 states that the Council seeks to ensure that developments provide the minimum necessary car parking provision.  The Council expects development to be car free in the Central London Area, the town centres of Camden Town, Finchley Road/Swiss Cottage, Kentish Town, Kilburn High Road and West Hampstead, and other areas within Controlled Parking Zones that are easily accessible by public transport.  The site is located in the West Kentish Town conservation area and the West Kentish Town: Inner controlled parking zone (CA-L) which operates between 0900 and 1100 hours on Monday to Friday.  In addition the site has a PTAL rating of 4 which means it is moderately accessible by public transport.   A car free development for the new residential units therefore needs to be secured as a Section 106 planning obligation.  This would allow the proposal to be in accordance with Core Strategies CS11 and CS19 and Development Policies DP18, DP19 and DP21.  The design and access statement indicates the site is to be a car free development. This is welcomed by Camden.
Cycle Parking
Development Policy DP18 (Paragraphs 18.12 and 18.13) requires development to provide cycle parking facilities in accordance with the minimum requirements of Camden’s cycle parking standards (Refer to Appendix 2 of Camden Development Policies document).  We also expect development to provide cycle parking facilities in accordance with the minimum requirements of the London Plan.

The proposed residential development consists of 1 unit with 2 bedrooms or more.  Therefore 2 cycle parking spaces are required to meet the London Plan’s minimum cycle parking requirement. 

The application form and supporting information suggests that cycle parking facilities would not be provided.    The proposal in the absence of cycle parking facilities is contrary to Core Strategies CS11 and CS19 and Development Policy DP18 as it would fail to encourage cycling as a sustainable and efficient mode of transport. The proposal would need to provide 2 covered, fully enclosed, secure and step-free cycle parking spaces to comply with the minimum requirements of Camden and London Plan cycle parking standards. The applicant should be asked to explain why cycle parking facilities do not form part of the proposal. 

The proposal as submitted should be refused due to the absence of cycle parking facilities.  However, it is suggested that the applicant be asked to submit additional details with a view to overcoming this recommendation for refusal.

Details of the cycle parking facilities would need to comply with the guidance provided within CPG7 (Transport) and should be submitted to Transport Strategy for consideration prior to determination of any subsequent planning application. CPG7 is available on the Council’s website at the hyperlink below:

http://camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/environment/planning-and-built-environment/two/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-documents/camden-planning-guidance.en
Management of Construction Impacts on the Public Highway in the local area

Camden Development Policy DP20 states that Construction Management Plans should be secured to demonstrate how a development will minimise impacts from the movement of goods and materials during the construction process (including any demolition works).  Camden Development Policy DP21 relates to how a development is connected to the highway network.  For some development this may require control over how the development is implemented (including demolition and construction) through a Construction Management Plan (CMP).  However, a CMP is not necessary for the site based on the scale of the proposal and the type of work involved.  

It must be noted that the site is located directly adjacent to a zebra crossing on Malden Road.  Loading and unloading will not therefore be permitted directly adjacent to the site.  Any such activity would cause road safety problems.  More importantly, it would constitute an offence.

Some highway licenses may be required to facilitate the proposed works.  

The applicant would need to obtain such highway licences from the Council prior to commencing work on site.  Any such licence requirements should be discussed in the CMP.  Details for the highway licences mentioned above are available on the Camden website at the hyperlink below:

· http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/business/business-regulations/licensing-and-permits/licences/skips-materials-and-building-licences/building-licences/
Proposed lightwells adjacent to the site

The proposed floor plans indicate that a new lightwell is proposed adjacent to the public highway on the Haverstock Hill frontage.  There are some concerns about the implications of pedestrians falling into the proposed lightwell.  Camden Planning Guidance; specifically CPG4 provides guidance on basements and lightwells.  Paragraph 2.71 discusses railings, grilles and other lightwell treatments.  As the proposed lightwells are to be located adjacent to the public highway, public safety issues will need to be addressed.   Paragraph 2.71 states that lightwells such as the one being proposed need to be secured by a railing or grille.  The proposal suggests that protective railings would be provided to match the neighbouring property.  This would be acceptable.  Details of the railings to be provided adjacent to the lightwell should be secured by condition.

Excavation in close proximity to the public highway

The proposal would involve basement excavations directly adjacent to the public highway on the Malden Road frontage.  We have to ensure that the stability of the public highway adjacent to the site is not compromised by the proposed basement excavations.  A basement impact assessment (BIA) has been submitted in support of the planning application.  However, this does not appear to discuss how the stability of the public highway would be protected.

The applicant would be required to submit an ‘Approval In Principle’ (AIP) report to our Highways Structures & Bridges Team within Engineering Services.  This would include structural details and calculations to demonstrate that the proposed development would not affect the stability of the public highway adjacent to the site.  This would also include an explanation of any mitigation measures which might be required.  The AIP and an associated assessment fee of £1,500 would need to be secured as section 106 planning obligations if planning permission is granted.

Loss of public realm directly adjacent to the site
The lightwell proposals would involve a loss of public realm and public right of way directly adjacent to the site on the Malden Road frontage.  The applicant would need to apply for a stopping up order and this would need to be approved by the Council prior to lightwell element of the development commencing on site.  This is a separate process from granting planning permission.    

Highway and Public Realm Improvements directly adjacent to the site
The summary page of Development Policy DP21 states that ‘The Council will expect works affecting Highways to repair any construction damage to transport infrastructure or landscaping and reinstate all affected transport network links and road and footway surfaces following development’.  The public highway in the general vicinity of the site is likely to be damaged as a direct result of the proposed works. We would therefore need to secure a financial contribution for highway works as a section 106 planning obligation if planning permission is granted.  This would allow the proposal to comply with Development Policy DP21.  A highways contribution of £5,000 should therefore be secured.

Summary of Section 106 Planning Obligations
The following section 106 planning obligations would be required if planning permission is granted:

· Car free development

· Financial contribution for highway works

· ‘Approval In Principle’ (AIP) report and assessment fee of £1,500
_1076324574.doc



